TOUN OF EAST KINGSTON- NEW HAMPESHIRE
ZONING BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT MEETING MINUTES
OCTOBER 23- 2008
7:00 PM

AGENDA
Member s Attending: Chairman John Daly, Vice Chairman David Ciardélatherine Belcher,
Paul Falman
Alternate Members: Tim Allen
Also present: Mr. Musso Sr. and Mr. Musso Jr., applicants.

Roberta Converse, 74 Main Street; Nancy Reis, 7it [Gaeet;
Gary Hinz, 76 Main Street, abutters

Mr. Daly opened the meeting of the East Kingstonidg Board of Adjustment (ZBA) at the Pound Schddl,
Depot Road on October 23, 2008 at 7:00 PM.

Election of Officers

Mr. Daly noted it was time to elect new officetde asked for nominations for the positions of Qiain and
Vice Chairman.

Mr. Falman nominated Mr. Daly for Chairman. Boamdmbers voted and the vote was unanimous.
Mr. Ciardelli nominated Mrs. Belcher for Vice Cha@n. Board members voted and the vote was
unanimous.

Mr. Daly will serve as Chairman and Mrs. Belchell sérve as Vice Chairman.

Public Hearing 08-03
Dan Musso, 71 Main Street (MBL 14-02-03), East Kingston, NH. . The applicant is seeking a use variance
from Article VIII - USESPERMITTED for a businessin aresidential zone.

Mr. Daly opened this public hearing and acknowletiti@at Mr. Musso and his son Dan Jr. were in atiand.
Mr. Musso was before the Board tonight becausedwddilike to operate a business in a residentiaézo

Mr. Daly recognized that although Mr. Musso hadmsitted his application under Article VIl — USES
PERMITTED, he would also need to apply under Agtitl - DISTRICTING. The Board would consider both
the articles in their review tonight.

Mr. Daly reviewed procedures for the hearing. Kieed abutters to wait to be recognized and to addte
Chair directly, and not other members of the Baarthe applicant. He also asked that they statie ttame and
address for the record.

Mr. Daly turned the floor over to Mr. Musso to exjol what it was that he proposed.

Mr. Musso explained that he presently runs a regf@p in Brentwood, and it is really too small.s o
sons were back from serving in Irag, and they alhted to operate a business together at the 71 $ept
location. Mr. Musso had purchased the propertyclivhas a garage at the rear with two lifts, andvae
looking to utilize that garage and run his busineik his sons from that location.



He wanted to run a general repair shop, and aldorpewelding and NH State Inspections. He note t
for years before he purchased the property, bothilM2amon and Marshall Merrill, Jr. had operated
business from the location.

Mr. Daly reviewed the Criteria with the Board argked Mr. Musso to address each one as he readtimac
Criteria 1. The proposed use would not diminish surrounding property values because:

Mr. Musso explained that they would be utilizing flootprint of the existing garage and making nanges
to that footprint; there was no expansion of thitdding planned. He noted it had been a repaillifador as
long as anyone in the town could remember, anddnage is already equipped with two lifts. He hiwd
sons had been cleaning up the property and anedimig on fixing up the building. Mr. Musso alsated he
had applied to the state to move his driveway ¢oatier side of his house as it was dangeroustéo tre
roadway from where it is presently located. Acdaogdo Mr. Musso, he had received that permissiomf
the state and is in the process of moving the diyeto the new location and blocking off the prdésen
driveway.

Mr. Daly noted he was not sure Mr. Musso’s replgradsed how his proposal would have an impact opepty
values, and asked him to explain further.

Mr. Musso stated his proposed business would remig# the traffic on the road; the traffic was alsea
heavy as it is a state road. The only changesdimeilwhat he and his sons were doing to increas ks
of the property by cleaning up and landscapingerghwvould be no junk cars on the property, andcany
would be in the garage or behind a fence and reot. sele did not intend to have a sign in the fafrthe
property, and was going to paint the roof of theaga so it would look better from the street.

Mr. Ciardelli stated that what Mr. Musso proposedioing to enhance the appearance of the propagyavgood
thing, but what the Board needed to know is theatfthe business would have on property values.

Mr. Musso stated that he would like to operate fidonday to Friday, and the Town could set the hdwrs
could operate the business and he was fine withevbathey wanted him to adhere to.

Mr. Ciardelli asked about noise and smoke.

Mr. Musso stated there would be minimal to no noéseall work was to be done in the shop, which was
ventilated and muffled the noise of the air compoes He knew that there had been problems withenwith
the prior businesses, but he did not want thatlprolwith his business, and would make sure it wowltdbe
a problem. He was sure when he installed the féne®uld also help further with any noises.

Mr. Daly asked if Mr. Musso thought there woulddrgy impact on property values if his business Wecated
in the residential area.

Mr. Musso stated he did not think there would bgiampact. There were businesses already locatedal
that road, and there was Carmen’s Restaurant anfdchity further down North Road, and he did trohk
his business would affect the area at all.

Mr. Falman asked if Mr. Musso intended on puttirgigm on the building or installing exterior lights

Mr. Musso replied there is presently an inspecsigm on the telephone pole that was there fromipusv
owners, and he did not intend on installing anyo#igns. He stated that the garage had two bagshis
intention was to utilize the larger bay for busmagd use the smaller one to work on his persafaties.
There are not many windows in the garage and they &way from the road. He thought he might ihatal
security light in the back, and replace the lampgiwat was in front of the house. He was not psopgpon

23 October 2008 East Kingston Zoning Board Meeting 2



installing any type of spotlight that might bothiee neighbors, and if any problems did come upyteld
change it.

23 October 2008 East Kingston Zoning Board Meeting



Criteria 2. Granting the variance would not be contrary to the public interest because:

Mr. Musso stated that a) no hazardous materialddimeiused; b) his insurance does not permit custeho
go into the work area, c) there would be no trdffipact as Main Street is a state road and alrbadytons

of traffic traveling on it; d) there is a large kizxg area down in the back, away from the road,gnahat he
was proposing was not a permitted use as the tagrpreviously changed the home occupation ordinance

Mr. Allen asked how Mr. Musso would handle dispgsaf oil and other hazardous waste he might have.

Mr. Musso stated that at the present time, hezaslthe services of a company that comes to pi¢ksup
waste oil. He would have no paint on the premiaed,if required, he would get a dumpster. Heedtat
that there had never a permitted home occupatine tand that previously the owners kept runniedy th
businesses after being denied a permit. Mr. Mpssasently works on the Police cruisers and wouel i
to work on the Fire Department vehicles as welé thbught it would be a benefit for both the Pohoel
Fire Departments to have his services so closeddds not think that granting the variance forthisiness
would be contrary to public interest.

Criteria 3. Denial of the variance would result in unnecessary hardship to the Owner because:
Mr. Musso stated it would take income away fromfhisily; there are no jobs out there and timeseaugh.

a. Thezoning restriction as applied to the property interferes with the reasonable use for the
property, considering the unique setting of the property in its environment such that:

Mr. Musso stated the property has an existing regheip/welding shop that has been there for yaats a
both the previous owners used the shop for repaidswvelding.

Mr. Musso stated he would follow whatever the taatied for, like working hours. And he would keep
all materials in a lock box or a certain area (lleedoes in his shop in Brentwood) so the Fire Bepnt
would have that information.

Mr. Daly stated that this is a difficult criteria $atisfy. He asked Mr. Musso what was it aboatitoperty that
was unique? Mrs. Belcher asked “what is differgitih your property in comparison with your neighdor
property? What makes it different?”

Mr. Musso stated the garage was already thereetngygo do business; he has 13 acres. He is not
intending on any major excavation. The garagedated at the back of the house and not on the rbad
is situated so he could have a business in thearehhave it still look residential from the front.

Mr. Ciardelli commented that those things madedteradvantageous and easier to do what he wanti but
they do not necessarily make the property unidgdes. Belcher stated, for example, that a propelightrhave 5
acres, but have a steep slope or water runningghrd. What could he tell the Board that was ugitp his

property?

Mr. Musso Jr. stated the rear of the property isragch lower than the surrounding properties, ahdro
than the area where the garage is, the rest idymwestlands. It holds water when it rains and stet.
They are clearing out brush and such and hopingdhe get the area to dry out some.

Mr. Daly asked for example, if the Board granted Musso what he wanted to do, and next week highiveir
wanted to do the same thing, why would Mr. Musgotsperty be more unique that the Board should grent
variance to him and not to his neighbor? Mr. Alketded if the property were too small for well aegtic

setbacks and a house could not be built on theeptyppihat type of situation could make it unigudr. Falman

23 October 2008 East Kingston Zoning Board Meeting 4



stated that there is already a house on the prowitt a certificate of occupancy, which shows éhisralready a
permitted use.

b. That no fair and substantial relationship exists between the general purposes of the zoning
ordinance and the specific restriction on the property because:

Mr. Musso answered that the previous owners ot used it for repairs, welding and a NH State
inspection station.

Mr. Daly said the Board would need to be convinited there is no fair and substantial relationsfr.
Ciardelli noted that the general restrictions harneémpact on the specific property, and the regris have
exactly the intended effect. When he looked ardisé&riction and the ordinance, there was a fairsarbstantial
relationship.

Mr. Allen asked how far Mr. Musso’s nearest neighvas.

Mr. Musso answered he thought perhaps 200’ on igleeasid 300’ on the other side, and more than that
to the properties across the street. He wouldlinstbarrier of trees and shrubs to help withwiesy.

c. Thevariance would not injure the public or private rights of otherssince:
Mr. Musso stated they would be following the towhissiness laws.

Mr. Falman stated that the intent of the applicati@s so Mr. Musso would be able to operate a basiin a
residential area. He asked Mr. Musso to addressdhts of others with residential property. MBglcher asked
what argument Mr. Musso would use to prove thatatpeg a business on his property would not affieet
public and private rights of his neighbors.

Mr. Musso answered that the way the property isigetvith the structure of the garage in the ri¢ar,
would not even be noticeable that there was a basibhack there when he finishes with the changées he
implementing. He would conform to whatever hotes town would set for his business, and noise
would be held to a minimum. He intended on planshrubs in front and possible adding a fenceantfr
of the garage. He would do whatever was necessangke sure it looked like only a residence al th
time.

Mr. Allen asked Mr. Musso to show him on the phatb¢he garage, just where it was that he interidexdstall
the fencing. Mr. Musso showed him the location.

Mr. Musso stated he was moving the driveway todtter side of the house for the sake of safety, and
when he installed the fence, you would only be #bkeee the roof and some of the windows of the
garage. All cars would be in the garage, or bettiedence away from the public view.

Criteria 4. Granting the variance would do substantial justice because:

Mr. Musso stated that they would be able to ruanailfy business and would be able to provide each
other with jobs in these tough times.

Mr. Ciardelli asked if there would be a loss to Miusso, and would the general public gain if hisibess were
not located there.

Mr. Musso stated that if the general public thouglat would be the best for him not to use the gmrae
felt they would be taking away from he and his fgras the garage is their livelihood

23 October 2008 East Kingston Zoning Board Meeting 5



Criteria5. Theuseisnot contrary to the spirit if the ordinance because:

Mr. Musso stated the proposed use would not dimmisisrounding property values, and that the previou
owners had used it for repairs, welding and a N&deSinspection station.

Mr. Daly stated Mr. Musso’s answer did not fullysarer that question. The area was primarily farnts a
residences. The question was why was the facMhatlusso wanted to have a business in that aseaantrary
to the spirit of the ordinance?

Mr. Musso answered that they were not planningdzfirey any more structures, and would be keeping to
the original footprint. He is located on a maiadand there are already businesses up and down the
street.

Mr. Allen noted that his existing structure is aéfit and his garage is not a grandfathered usehefsees it, it is
no different than if it were an empty lot and heweal to build his business there.

Mr. Daly opened up the floor to public comment.

Ms. Roberta Converse, 74 Main Street. Ms. Converse stated she disagreed with sonteedhtngs Mr. Musso
had said. What he wants to do does goes agam$dhthat the area is zoned residential for faarms
residences. Carmen’s had been grandfatheredad formerly been a teahouse. She disagreed hvéttistance
Mr. Musso stated her house was from his; she $aidvas closer. Mr. Musso clarified that he wasrgjahe
distance from the garage to her property, andnoot the house to the property.

Ms. Converse is concerned with property valuegesinis her belief that anyone showing propertysiae would
need to disclose the fact that there was a busaraesgst the residences. She does think it woakkeran
impact on her property value. She agrees thatMeso’s changing the driveway is a good idea. &ée
knows people travel fast on Main Street since dt &ate road, but she is certain his having ankasithere will
make even more traffic. She asked if he were ema@pbusiness there, what protection would thehbeig have
that he would not expand it, even thought he saysds no plans to do so at this time? The predeuers
expanded it without permits. She is concerned firightrucks going up and down the driveway; andatvdibout
any other large trucks? She stated she could sstahhis property from her front window at thegent time,
and acknowledge the fact that a fence would copex certain amount of what she sees, but not rexdgsall of
it.

Mr. Daly ensured Ms. Converse that if Mr. Mussagsiance were to be approved, the Zoning Board caittiscth
conditions to the variance covering most of theceons she had addressed.

Mrs. Nancy Reiss, 76 Main Street. Mrs. Reis thought that the intent of the town wabe a rural agricultural
town, and a business in the midst of the residieatésa did not fit that description. She would é@o problem if
Mr. Musso were intending on having an invisibleibass, such as an office to do the bookkeepingifor
business in Brentwood. She did have a problemtnittks going in and out of his driveway and instigg more
traffic than what was already on Main Street. ®hs concerned about large fire trucks going inautdf the
driveway. She recognized that although the pressauners had been operating an unapproved business
generally known that the town turned their backlmnfact since they had worked on town vehicles.

Mr. Gary Hinz, 76 Main Street. Mr. Hinz asked what Article Ill Mr. Daly had refed to was, and Mr. Daly
reviewed that ARTICLE Ill — DISTRICTING state$:or the purpose of regulating the use of the lardl the
location and construction of buildings, the TowrEakt Kingston shall be considered as one distrfict
residential, agricultural or forestry use only. #8noess, commercial and industrial uses are probibixcept as
hereinafter provided.”

23 October 2008 East Kingston Zoning Board Meeting 6



Mr. Hinz noted that the map Mr. Musso had turneditth his application had not indicated where tea/n
driveway or landscaping would be. Mr. Falman anedehat the town has nothing to do with the chdnge
driveway; the state controlled those permits. Musso had applied directly to them and had obtampdrmit to
change the location. Mr. Musso stated he was deriaig on putting up a fence or shrubs to hidectrs, but
was not sure just where they would be located.

Mr. Hinz stated he had not seen anything on théicgtipn about the hours of operation. Mr. Mussdi¢ated he
would adhere to any hours the town would like himatithough he works from 8:00-5:00, Monday through
Friday at the present time in Brentwood. Mr. Dstigted if the application were to be approved, fiofir
operation was one of the items that could be aitiondf approval. And if they were not adheredtte Police
could enforce it if needed.

Mr. Musso rebutted Ms. Converse’s comment regartiiffjc. He stated the traffic is increasing omil Street
because it is a state road. His business wouldhakt the traffic any heavier than it was alrealdyg. also stated
that for the most part, he would be working onftheetrucks at the fire station and not at his garaunless they
needed some major work.

He reiterated that he was thinking of whether drtagut in a fence or a row of shrubs, as he whtdeshield the
view from the road. He was trying to make it lanky like a residential area. He would work outiteof
business with the town; whatever they wanted waes\iiith him. He wanted to be able to have his sark

with him in the business, and his garage in Brentiwwas not large enough to do that. He couldditdrs in the
garage at 71 Main Street. He planned on no expanise was getting older and wanted his businebe small
and simple so the profits would be bigger. The/ dights would be the one in the front of the hoosghe lamp-
post, and perhaps a security light by the gar&tgwas not planning on any bright spotlights.

Mr. Musso wanted it known that he was not tryindp#it the town when he had stated he would giventhe
break on their repairs of town vehicles. He ofthi same discount to all municipal vehicles ttmahe to him.

Mr. Daly asked about deliveries, and Mr. Mussoestatny deliveries would be by small pickup truckveeing
car parts or UPS delivery truck. He was not integdo work on tractor-trailers, as his sons wouded to go to
school to learn how to work on them. He thougktduld be a plus for the community to have a gandght in
town. He also thinks it could increase propertyga to have the business there. His thought ashis sort of
business could entice people to want to buy imtiighborhood.

Mr. Musso extended the offer to the Board membedsthe abutters present to come and take a loois at
garage and ask him any questions they had. lnebkis intent to make his neighbors mad.

Mr. Daly closed the public hearing. The Board eswéd the Criteria.
Criteria 1. The proposed use would not diminish surrounding property values because:

Mr. Daly stated that he could go either way on thmiteria. Granting the variance could increase Musso’s
property and decrease the surrounding propertietheother hand, it could increase them. Mr. d&Hir
noted that the property does slope down in the ezat that Mr. Musso could fix it up with landsaagiand
fencing so it would appear as a residence and hosimess. He opined it would not change the suding
property values. Mr. Falman stated it was nof 8ri Musso was intending on building a new struetuhe
garage was already there. He opined that surrogmaoperty values would not be affected. Mr. Alloted
if Mr. Musso were intending on constructing a nasilding, it would be a cut and dried decision famh

But the building is already there, and shrubs amdihg would hide everything connected with theiress
and allow it to look residential. He opined it idmot change the surrounding property values.

Mrs. Belcher agreed that the location of the gamgthe property would allow it to be almost inkis), but
she was most concerned with the traffic pullinguid out of the driveway on that dangerous curvtaen
road. It was her opinion that some of the surrinm@roperties already have diminished values ez afl

23 October 2008 East Kingston Zoning Board Meeting 7



that curve of the road and the aspect of dandesit Creating more traffic, that in essence wbeldlowing
and stopping just on the outside of that curvegpageater danger to general traffic and to thghtoairs
pulling in and out of their own driveways. Incremscompromised traffic conditions does, in hemigm,
negatively affect surrounding property values. Bhaeased Mr. Musso is changing the locatiorhef t
driveway, and considers it to be a very wise denisin his part to do so. She does think grantieg t
variance it would affect property values.

Mr. Allen, Mr. Ciardelli and Mr. Falman, opined titherewould not be any diminution of property values. Mrs.
Belcher and Mr. Daly opined there would be dimioatof property values. The vote waéauld not) and 2
(would). The Board voted 3 to 2 that the criteria wasfad.

Criteria 2. Granting the variance would not be contrary to the public interest because:

Mr. Ciardelli opined that granting the variance Wbnot be contrary to the public interest. Mr.eklagreed,
as did Mr. Falman. They agreed that any problaroh ss oil spills, storage of antifreeze, tire s, etc.
were concerns that could be controlled by the toivins. Belcher noted that because of the limitgghtsi
distance out of the driveway onto the road, shdtfelould be a danger to allow more traffic in ama of the
driveway that what would happen with ordinary fantiving. She opined it would be contrary to thejic
interest because of this fact.

Mr. Allen, Mr. Ciardelli, Mr. Daly and Mr. Falmarmpined that itvould not be contrary to the public interest to
grant the variance. Mrs. Belcher opinediduld be contrary to the public interest. The vote wasvduld not)
and 1 (ould). The Board voted 4 to 1 that the criteria wasBad.

Criteria 3. Denial of the variance would result in unnecessary hardship to the power because:

a. Thezoningrestriction as applied to the property interferes with the reasonable use for the property,
considering the unique setting of the property in its environment such that:

Mr. Ciardelli opined that even with all the goodhtlis Mr. Musso has planned for the property, thestjon
is if the use he proposes is a reasonable ushdqrbperty. He noted that there were many otfiegs Mr.
Musso could do with the property other than operatbusiness there, and does not feel that thegoni
restriction interferes with the reasonable usénefgroperty. Mr. Falman opined that the fact thate is
already an occupied residence on the property stimatshere is an existing use for the propertg at$o
noted that there is no unique setting of the pypbiat would distinguish it from any other propein the
neighborhood.

Mrs. Belcher noted that Mr. Musso does not neqatdoe there is no other use for his property, agdguest
is reasonable, but that there is something unioetahe property that would create a hardshipe @&les
not feel there is anything unique with the prope4r. Allen opined that the slope at the rearhef property
does not really make it any more unique than tlopgnty of Mr. Musso’s neighbors.

Mr. Allen, Mrs. Belcher, Mr. Daly, Mr. Ciardelli ahMr. Falman, opined that denial of the varianogld not
interfere with the reasonable use for the propanty that there were no unigue characteristicseoptbperty.
The vote was Hwould not) and 0 (ould). The Board voted 5 to 0 that the criteria wassatisfied.

b. That no fair and substantial relationship exists between the general purposes of the zoning ordinance
and the specific restriction on the property because:

Mr. Allen noted the zoning ordinance was put inrcpléo avoid businesses or industry in residentinks. Mr.
Falman agreed and noted that the fact there was-@xisting business there does not apply. MricHge, Mr.
Ciardelli and Mr. Daly and agreed. The collectiygnion is that there is a fair and substantiatiehship
between the purpose of the zoning ordinance antk#igction on the property. The vote wa@shand 0 {s
not). The Board voted 5 to 0 that the criteria wassatisfied.

23 October 2008 East Kingston Zoning Board Meeting 8



¢c. Thevariancewould not injurethe public or private rights of others since:

Mr. Daly explained that this criteria goes handiamd with criteria #1. Mr. Musso’s neighbors héwe right
to not have a business located in their neighbathddr. Allen, Mrs. Belcher. Mr. Ciardelli, and MFalman
agreed. The collective opinion was that the puidiprivate rights of others would be injured. Mute was
5 (would) and 0 would not). The Board voted 5 to O that the criteria wakssatisfied

Criteria 4. Granting the variance would do substantial justice because:

Mrs. Belcher noted that substantial justice wowdddbne if Mr. Musso could use his property for ploepose
that he bought it. Mr. Allen, Mr. Ciardelli, Mr.dly and Mr. Falman agreed. The vote wdwéuld) and 0
(would not). The Board voted 5 to O that the criteria waisfad

Criteria5. Theuseisor isnot contrary to the spirit if the ordinance because:

Mr.

Mr.

Mr.

Mr.

Mr. Daly noted that this criteria was as diffictdtmeet as the hardship criteria. What is the gsgf the
ordinance and would the proposed use be contrahatwrdinance? Mr. Ciardelli, Mr. Daly, and Mr.
Falman agreed it would be contrary to the spirithef ordinance. Mrs. Belcher stated she had coneith
the dangerous corner and in her opinion, it woaddgainst the health and safety of the communityaat
the variance. Mr. Allen agreed with the other Bbarembers. He stated that the Board was diregteioeb
rules to only grant variances to those that prdvihe points of the criteria. Mr. Allen, Mrs. Bader, Mr.
Ciardelli, Mr. Daly, and Mr. Falman opined the yseposed would be contrary to the spirit of theiradce.
The vote was %is) and 0 {snot). The Board voted 5 to 0 that the criteria wassatisfied

Daly reviewed that criteria 1,2, and 4 werasdad; criteria 3 and 5 were not satisfied.

Daly asked for a motion on the application.

MOTION: Mr. FalmanM OVED that the variance H2ENIED for the application of Mr. Dan Musso
seeking a use variance from Article VIl - USES RHRTED and a variance under Article Il -
DISTRICTING for a business in a residential zoyr. Ciardelli seconded. The vote was five “ayes”
and the motion carried.

Daly closed the public hearing.

Messers Musso thanked the Board for their time.

Daly informed the applicant that he had 30 dayshich to apply for a rehearing.

Board Business

Mr.

Daly polled Board members to ascertain wheméet in the months of November and December, as the

regular meeting dates fall on Thanksgiving and &€mas. The Board chose Novembef a8d December 30
as alternate dates to meet. Mrs. White will chiétthese dates are available with the Selectmeffis€d

The meeting was adjourned at 9:20 PM.

Respectfully submitted,

Barbara White John Daly
Recording Secretary Chairman

23 October 2008 East Kingston Zoning Board Meeting 9



